1	KAMALA D. HARRIS					
2	Attorney General of California JANICE K. LACHMAN					
3	Supervising Deputy Attorney General ANAHITA S. CRAWFORD					
4	Deputy Attorney General State Bar No. 209545					
5	1300 I Street, Suite 125 P.O. Box 944255					
6	Sacramento, CA 94244-2550 Telephone: (916) 322-8311					
7	Facsimile: (916) 327-8643 Attorneys for Complainant					
8	BEFORE THE					
9	BOARD OF PHARMACY DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS					
10	STATE OF CA					
11	In the Matter of the Accusation Against:	Case No. 4650				
12	GABRIELLE ELISA TALMADGE					
13	6521 Stoneman Drive North Highlands, CA 95660	ACCUSATION				
14	Pharmacy Technician Registration No. 94269					
15	Respondent.					
16						
17	Complainant alleges:					
18	<u>PARTIES</u>					
19	1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity					
20	as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs.					
21	2. On or about September 17, 2009, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Technician					
22	Registration Number 94269 to Gabrielle Elisa Talmadge (Respondent). The Pharmacy					
23	Technician Registration expired on January 31, 2013, and has not been renewed.					
24	<u>JURISDICTION</u>					
25	3. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of					
26	Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the					
27	Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.					
28	//					
	1					

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Government Code, and the board shall have all the powers granted therein. The action shall be final, except that the propriety of the action is subject to review by the superior court pursuant to Section 1094.5 of the Code of Civil Procedure. Section 4300.1 of the Code states: The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued license by operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, the placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee shall not deprive the board of jurisdiction to commence or proceed with any investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render a decision suspending or revoking the license. STATUTORY PROVISIONS 7. Section 4301 of the Code states: The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following:

(j) The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or of the United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs.

(1) The conviction of a crime substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. The record of conviction of a violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United States Code regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this state regulating controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be conclusive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled substances or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo contendere is deemed to be a conviction within the meaning of this provision. The board may take action when the time for appeal has elapsed, or the judgment of conviction has been affirmed on appeal or when an order granting probation is made suspending the imposition of sentence, irrespective of a subsequent order under Section 1203.4 of the Penal Code allowing the person to withdraw his or her plea of guilty and to enter a plea of not guilty, or setting aside the verdict of guilty, or dismissing the accusation, information, or indictment.

Drugs at Issue

• "Marijuana" is a Schedule I controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11054, subdivision (d)(13).

28

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28 ||

//

//

COST RECOVERY

8. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of the case.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Criminal Conviction)

- 9. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subsection (l) for unprofessional conduct in that on or about January 8, 2013, in the case of *People v. Talmadge*, *Gabrielle*, Superior Court of County of Sacramento, Case No. 12F000280, Respondent was convicted on her plea of no contest, to violating Penal Code section 273A, subsection (a) (child endangerment), a misdemeanor. The circumstances are as follows:
- 10. On or about November 19, 2011, at approximately 12:10 a.m., Sacramento County Sheriff's Deputies were dispatched to San Juan Mercy Hospital's Emergency Room on a report of a 3 year old child that tested positive for marijuana. Upon interview, Respondent disclosed to deputies that she and the child's father had baked brownies containing marijuana. Deputies searched Respondent's home and found a pan of brownies that appeared to have handfuls of brownies removed from the pan. Marijuana leaves, residue and a scale were located in the home within reach of the child.

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Violation of Laws Regulating Controlled Substances and Dangerous Drugs)

11. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subsection (j) for unprofessional conduct in on or about November 19, 2011, Respondent was in possession of marijuana, a controlled substance and a dangerous drug, as further described in paragraphs 9-10. Respondent did not have a medical marijuana card and had not been prescribed the substance by a physician.

PRAYER

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:

- 1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Technician Registration Number 94269, issued to Gabrielle Elisa Talmadge.;
- 2. Ordering Gabrielle Elisa Talmadge to pay the Board of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 125.3;
 - 3. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED.	2	8/14	12		
DATED:	0	17	1.5		Megin
		1		Var talefor	CHANGE TA TO A SERVICE

VIRGINIA REROLD Executive Officer Board of Pharmacy

Department of Consumer Affairs

State of California Complainant

SA2013110880 11100835.doc